

ORNL-3585 UC-4 – Chemistry TID-4500 (29th ed.)

# PROPOSED HEAD-END TREATMENTS OF

## PUREX-1WW WASTE FOR FISSION PRODUCT

# RECOVERY BY ION EXCHANGE

W. C. Yee W. Davis, Jr.



325

# OAK RIDGE NATIONAL LABORATORY

operated by UNION CARBIDE CORPORATION for the U.S. ATOMIC ENERGY COMMISSION

# DISCLAIMER

This report was prepared as an account of work sponsored by an agency of the United States Government. Neither the United States Government nor any agency Thereof, nor any of their employees, makes any warranty, express or implied, or assumes any legal liability or responsibility for the accuracy, completeness, or usefulness of any information, apparatus, product, or process disclosed, or represents that its use would not infringe privately owned rights. Reference herein to any specific commercial product, process, or service by trade name, trademark, manufacturer, or otherwise does not necessarily constitute or imply its endorsement, recommendation, or favoring by the United States Government or any agency thereof. The views and opinions of authors expressed herein do not necessarily state or reflect those of the United States Government or any agency thereof.

# DISCLAIMER

Portions of this document may be illegible in electronic image products. Images are produced from the best available original document.

Printed in USA. Price: \$1,00 Available from the Office of Technical Services U. S. Department of Commerce Washington 25, D. C.

#### LEGAL NOTICE

This report was prepared as an account of Government sponsored work. Neither the United States, nor the Commission, nor any person acting on behalf of the Commission:

- A. Makes any warranty or representation, expressed or implied, with respect to the accuracy, completeness, or usefulness of the information contained in this report, or that the use of uny information, apparatus, method, or process disclosed in this report may not infringe privately owned rights; or
- B. Assumes any liabilities with respect to the use of, or for damages resulting from the use of any information, apparatus, method, or process disclosed in this report.

As used in the above, "person acting on behalf of the Commission" includes any employee or contractor of the Commission, or employee of such contractor, to the extent that such employee or contractor of the Commission, or employee of such contractor prepares, disseminates, or provides access to, any information pursuant to his employment or contract with the Commission, or his employment with such contractor.

ORNL-3585

Contract No. W-7405-eng-26 CHEMICAL TECHNOLOGY DIVISION Chemical Development Section B

# PROPOSED HEAD-END TREATMENTS OF PUREX-1WW WASTE FOR FISSION PRODUCT RECOVERY BY ION EXCHANGE

W. C. Yee and W. Davis, Jr.

JUNE 1964

OAK RIDGE NATIONAL LABORATORY Oak Ridge, Tennessee operated by UNION CARBIDE CORPORATION for the U.S. ATOMIC ENERGY COMMISSION

# THIS PAGE WAS INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

#### CONTENTS

# Page

Abst	tract • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •	•	l
1.	Introduction	•	2
2.	Flowsheets	•	3
	2.1 Waste Treatment by Citrate Complexing	•	3
	2.2 Waste Treatment by Nitric Acid Precipitation	•	6
3.	Process Chemistry Studies	•	6
	3.1 Addition of Complexing Agent, pH Adjustment, and Ion		•
	Exchange Separation	•	8
	3.2 Precipitation in Nitric Acid and Ion Exchange Separation.	•	14
4.	Radiation Damage to the Cation Resin	•	22
5.	Discussion of Results	•	24
6.	Acknowledgements	•	25
7.	Appendix	•	26
8.	References	•	30

#### PROPOSED HEAD-END TREATMENTS OF PUREX-1WW WASTE FOR FISSION PRODUCT RECOVERY BY ION EXCHANGE

W. C. Yee and W. Davis, Jr.

#### ABSTRACT

Two methods are described for preparing Purex lWW radioactive waste for recovering strontium and/or rare earths by cation exchange. One method involves (1) complexing the major cationic impurities with citrate ion at pH 2.5, and (2) processing a twentyfold diluted and treated waste solution through a column of resin (pre-equilibrated to pH 2.5 with ammonia) where the uncomplexed alkaline earth and rare earth elements are sorbed. The other method involves (1) precipitating sulfate ion (as ferric sulfate) from Purex lWW waste at 55 to 60% HNO<sub>3</sub>, and (2) precipitating strontium nitrate from the resulting nearly-sulfate-free solution from 85% HNO<sub>3</sub>. Cation exchange is used to purify this precipitate further.

Pretreatment (complexing) with citrate ion results in a fourfold and threefold improvement in resin capacity for strontium and rare earths, respectively, over that for untreated and tenfold diluted waste. Less than 1% of the ferric ion in the waste is sorbed on the resin. Pretreatment by a double precipitation concentrates the strontium by a factor of 2.5 to 3.0 and reduces by more than 200-fold the ratio of total trivalent cationic impurities to strontium. Resin capacity for strontium is improved by a factor of 20 over that for the citrate-treated waste.

Radiation degradation of the resin in both processes is discussed in terms of expected resin life. If citrate complexing is used as the basis for separating strontium and/or rare earth elements from impurity ions, then operating time to 10% resin capacity loss would be about 2500 hr or 100 hr, depending on whether just strontium or strontium and rare earth elements were recovered. If the head-end precipitation process is used for removing impurities, then the time to 10% loss of resin capacity in the final purification would be only about 15 and 10 hr, respectively, depending on whether strontium or strontium and rare earth elements were recovered.

#### 1. INTRODUCTION

The principle purpose of this report is to describe two preparatory procedures for separating strontium and/or rare earth elements from the major cationic impurities in Purex LWW waste solution. One of these procedures is based on the use of citrate to complex the cationic impurities (iron, chromium, and aluminum) prior to separating them from strontium and the rare earths. The second preparatory procedure involves a double precipitation in which first sulfate is removed and then strontium nitrate is precipitated nearly free of the cationic impurities. A second purpose of this report is to indicate how these materials that are nearly free of the cationic impurities may then be further processed by ion exchange in order to obtain more or less pure fractions of strontium and rare earths.

One of the most significant wastes from nuclear fuel processing operations is a Purex LWW waste. In this waste, concentrations of radioisotopes are small, about  $10^3$  to  $10^4$  curies per tonne<sup>\*</sup> of uranium, or 0.1 to 1.0 gram per liter of waste solution. Associated with the fission products, amongst other things, are about 30 g of trivalent cationic impurities (iron, chromium, and aluminum) that greatly interfere with the separation of strontium and rare earth elements from this solution by ion exchange. In addition, there is about one mole of sulfate ion per liter of solution that prevents the use of precipitation to separate strontium as the nitrate from these impurities. Because ion exchange offers a rather simple process to recover fission products in the absence of sulfate and the cationic impurities, some effort has been spent to eliminate them.

The scope of this report includes the description of an lon exchange process in which the cationic impurities of Purex 1WW waste are complexed with citrate and then passed through a column of Dowex 50W cation resin where the uncomplexed alkaline earth and rare earth elements are sorbed.

A "tonne" is a metric ton,  $10^3$  kg.

It also includes the description of a method for removing sulfate from the waste by a precipitation process, and a subsequent precipitation of strontium nitrate from the resulting nearly-sulfate-free solution. Also included is a discussion of how presently available ion exchange technology can be applied for further purification of strontium and rare earths after either of the preliminary purification procedures.

#### 2. FLOWSHEETS

Two flowsheets are given as alternative methods of cleaning up Purex lWW waste in order subsequently to process it by cation exchange for recovery of the fission products, strontium and/or rare earths. The composition of the waste solution is given in Table 1, which includes the major cationic impurity concentrations corresponding to Hanford Purex LWW supernatant.<sup>1,2</sup> Fission product yields were calculated from the data of Blomeke and Todd<sup>3</sup> on the basis of about a tenth of Yankee Atomic Power Reactor conditions, which correspond to a burnup of about 8000 Mwd/tonne of 3.5% U<sup>235</sup> and a cooling time of 100 days.<sup>4</sup>

#### 2.1 Waste Treatment by Citrate Complexing

One simple and effective method of waste treatment is to complex the major trivalent cationic impurities by adding citrate ion in the ratio of 1.5 moles for each mole of ferric, chromic, and aluminum ion in the filtered waste. The pH of the solution is adjusted to 2.5 with ammonium hydroxide and heated to 90°C for 0.5 hr. Subsequent cation exchange processing is accomplished by passing a twentyfold diluted and treated waste solution through a column of Dowex 50W X-8 (100 to 200 mesh) resin which has previously been converted to the ammonium form at pH 2.5. A linear flow rate of about 1 cm/min is used. The flowsheet for this procedure is given in Fig. 1.

Laboratory tests with simulated Purex 1WW indicated that up to 3 and 5 volumes of original filtered waste (equivalent to 60 and 100 volumes of twentyfold diluted waste) can be processed for strontium and rare earths (RE's), respectively, per volume of Dowex 50W in the ammonium form.



Fig. 1. In this Flowsheet, the Trivalent Cationic Impurities (Fe<sup>3+</sup>, Cr<sup>3+</sup>, and Al<sup>3+</sup>), after being Complexed with Citrate, Pass through the Ion Exchange Column while Strontium and Rare Earth Cations are Sorbed on the Resin.

F

	Conce	ntration
Ion	Molarity	Gram/liter
Major Impur	ities <sup>a</sup>	
н+	5.6	
NO3	6.1	
so <sup>2</sup> -	1.0	
<sub>re</sub> 3+	0.5	
A13+	0.1	
Cr3+	0.01	
Ni <sup>2+</sup>	0.01	
Na <sup>+</sup>	0.6	
002 <sup>2+</sup>	0.01	
P043- b	0.01	
sio <sub>2</sub> •xH <sub>2</sub> 0 <sup>b</sup>	0.02	
	Fission Products <sup>C</sup>	
2+ Ba		0.18
Sr <sup>2+</sup>		0.18
Ca <sup>2+</sup>		0.72
Ce		0.47
Zr-Np <sup>b</sup>		0.63
Rare earths		0.93
Cs <sup>+</sup>		0.43
Ru		0.25

Table 1. Approximate Composition of Purex 1WW Waste Solution

As precipitate.

<sup>c</sup> Concentrations based on 0.1 of Yankee Atomic Power Reactor conditions, which correspond to a burnup of 8000 Mwd/tonne of 3.4% U<sup>235</sup>, and 100 days of cooling time.

Greater than 95% of the strontium and rare earths are retained on the resin bed while greater than 99% of the ferric ion in the waste is removed by citrate complexing.

#### 2.2 Waste Treatment by Nitric Acid Precipitation

The nitric acid treatment of Purex 1WW waste consists of a double precipitation in which sulfate ion is precipitated as ferric sulfate in 55 to 60% HNO<sub>3</sub> and then strontium is recovered by precipitation in 85% HNO<sub>3</sub>. The procedure follows the flowsheet shown in Fig. 2.

- Add ferric ion to Purex 1WW, as freshly precipitated Fe<sub>2</sub>O<sub>3</sub>•xH<sub>2</sub>O or partially dehydrated Fe(NO<sub>3</sub>)<sub>3</sub>•9H<sub>2</sub>O (boiling temperature of about 135°C).
- 2. Add 90% HNO<sub>3</sub> to increase the acidity to 55 to 60% HNO<sub>3</sub> in order to precipitate sulfate as  $Fe_2(SO_h)_3$ .
- 3. Filter and evaporate filtrate until the temperature reaches 135°C.
- 4. Make 85% in nitric acid with 90% HNO, to precipitate strontium.
- 5. Hold at about 70°C to 12 hr<sup>5</sup> to minimize coprecipitation of the remaining iron and aluminum and then filter at temperature.
- 6. Dissolve the strontium precipitate in water for ion exchange processing.
- 7. Add citrate ion in the ratio of 3 moles per mole of remaining ferric, chromic, and aluminum ions in this solution; adjust the pH to 2.5 with ammonium hydroxide and process through a column of Dowex 50W X-8 (100 to 200 mesh) which has been converted to the ammonium form at pH 2.5.

Laboratory studies with simulated Purex 1WW show that the double precipitation procedure yields a solid product containing 75 to 80% of the original strontium and less than 1% each of the major cationic impurities, ferric, aluminum, and sodium ions and sulfate. Subsequent cation exchange processing of this product indicates an improvement in resin capacity of over 20 times that of the citrate waste treatment procedure (Sec 2.1); that is to say, the equivalent of almost 67 volumes of original Purex 1WW could be processed per volume of Dowex 50W resin in the ammonium form, with greater than 95% of the strontium retained on the resin bed. Rare earth recovery is not improved by this treatment because only partial precipitation occurs in the 85% HNO<sub>3</sub> solution.

#### 3. PROCESS CHEMISTRY STUDIES

The initial objective was direct ion exchange processing of diluted, acid Purex 1WW waste by cation exchange, but this approach had to be

WASTE BOTTOMS 68% HNO3 FERRIC ION 90% HNO3 Sr<sup>2+</sup> 20-25% RECTIFIER Excess as Freshly 920 vol Fe<sup>3+</sup> 130% Precipitated АI<sup>3+</sup> DISTILLATE 55% 90% HNO3 Fe<sub>2</sub>O<sub>3</sub>·XH<sub>2</sub>O Na<sup>+</sup> 70% WASTE 177 vol 233 vol 213 vol FILTRATE PUREX 1WW WASTE Sr<sup>2+</sup> 20-25% 194 vol 90% HNO2 Fe<sup>3+</sup> Sr<sup>2+</sup> 66.7 vol H2O 130% 0.18 mg/ml A13+ 55% RE (Ce<sup>3+</sup>) 1.61 mg/ml Na<sup>+</sup> 70% 56.7 vol FILTRATE 1130 vol Sr<sup>2+</sup> CRUDE PRODUCT 99.9% : Fe<sup>3+</sup> 293% Sr2+ 75-80% A13+ STRONTIUM 55% SULFATE so42-PRECIPITATE <0.1% PRECIPITATION Na<sup>+</sup> 83% PRECIPITATION FILTER FILTER 253 vol Fe3+ 86% HNO3 0.5% Dissolve strontium 55-60% HNO<sub>3</sub> **EVAPORATE** AI3+ in H2O 0.3% Heat 12 hr TO RESIDUE at 70°C Na<sup>+</sup> 0.2% TEMP OF 135°C 20 vol 20 vol Waste Solids, <1% Total WASTE PRECIPITATE TO ION EXCHANGE BASIS: 1 vol of Dowex 50 W X-8 (100-200 mesh) resin in H<sup>+</sup> form ~90% of SO42-PURIFICATION as Fe2(SO4)3 NOTE: Synthetic Purex 1WW waste solution: H<sup>+</sup>-5.6 M, NO3<sup>-</sup>-6.1 M, SO4<sup>2-</sup>-1.0 M, Fe<sup>+3</sup>-0.5 M, Al<sup>+3</sup>-0.1 M, No<sup>+</sup>-0.6 M, Sr<sup>+2</sup>-0.002 M.

Fig. 2. In this Flowsheet, First Sulfate Is Removed by Precipitation from Simulated Purex 1WW Waste as  $Fe_2(SO_4)_3$  from 55 to 60% HNO<sub>3</sub>, then  $Sr(NO_3)_2$  is recovered by Precipitation from 85% HNO<sub>3</sub>.

\*\*

~1

UNCLASSIFIED ORNL DWG. 64-1178 abandoned. Early work by others<sup>6</sup> with a waste somewhat similar to a tenfold diluted Purex 1WW indicated that a volume distribution coefficient of nearly 200 could be expected for strontium. However, in the present experiments with a waste that closely simulated the diluted Purex 1WW, a value of 7.5 was found because of the overwhelming amount of iron, chromium, and aluminum in this waste.<sup>7</sup> The distribution coefficient for rare earths was found to be about 17. Furthermore, a cation-resinselectivity scale published by Strehlow<sup>8</sup> confirmed that relatively little strontium could be sorbed under these conditions and that there was little hope of improved strontium recovery by using either more concentrated or more dilute waste solutions. Thus, it was necessary to develop procedures to overcome the adverse effects of the major cation impurities.

# 3.1 Addition of Complexing Agent, pH Adjustment, and Ion Exchange Separation

Citrate complexes of iron,<sup>9</sup> chromium,<sup>10</sup> and aluminum<sup>9</sup> have been reported to be stable at pH values as low as 3 if 1.5 moles of citrate are added for each mole of trivalent ion. However, at this pH level the rare earths are also known to form citrate complexes<sup>11</sup> and therefore would not be separated from the waste. Hence, a lower pH range was investigated to see if both strontium and the rare earths could be separated from the trivalent cationic impurities.

Exploratory tests showed that this separation could be achieved at pH 2.5. Distribution coefficients were then determined for rare earths  $(Ce^{3+})$ , strontium, and iron  $(Fe^{3+})$  as a function of Purex 1WW dilution in order to find the optimum conditions for column operation at this pH value. For these experiments, Dowex 50W X-8 (100 to 200 mesh) resin was converted to the ammonium form prior to its use by equilibrating with a 0.5 <u>M</u> HNO<sub>3</sub>--0.05 <u>M</u> ammonium citrate solution at pH 2.5. The waste solution was prepared for use by adding 1.5 moles of citrate per mole of combined Fe<sup>3+</sup>, Al<sup>3+</sup>, and Cr<sup>3+</sup>, by neutralizing to pH 2.5 with concentrated ammonia, by heating to 90°C for half an hour to ensure complete complexing of the chromic ion, <sup>10</sup> and by diluting with water to the desired values. Experimental data (Fig. 3) indicated that the



Fig. 3. The Distribution Coefficients of Ce<sup>141</sup> and Sr<sup>85</sup> Increase as the Solution is Diluted. The distribution coefficient for iron (Fe<sup>59</sup> tracer) did not change even when the Purex waste was diluted with 400 parts of water. The points are not shown in the graph. (1.5 moles of citric acid per mole (Fe<sup>3+</sup> + Al<sup>3+</sup> + Cr<sup>3+</sup>) were added to one volume of lWW solution. The pH was adjusted to 2.5 with NH<sub>4</sub>OH, and this solution was then diluted to the indicated value.) major cationic impurities were retained as strong citrate complexes, even in greatly diluted waste solutions; the volume distribution coefficient values for iron were less than 0.3 for both 40- and 400-fold diluted Purex 1WW waste. Resin capacity for strontium and rare earths was observed to increase as the extent of water dilution was increased. For column operations a reasonable dilution factor of 20 was selected, and the separation factors were then determined to be as follows:  $D^{Sr}/D^{Fe}$ , more than 200;  $D^{Ce}/D^{Fe}$ , more than 600; and  $D^{Ce}/D^{Sr}$ , about 3.

Treated waste at this twentyfold dilution was run through a column  $(0.5\text{-in.-ID} \times 6\text{-in.-long})$  of cation resin in the ammonium form (15 ml) to obtain kinetic sorption data. A linear flow rate of 0.73 cm/min was used. Resin capacity for strontium, rare earths, barium, and calcium was obtained by the use of  $\mathrm{Sr}^{85}$ ,  $\mathrm{Ce}^{141}$ ,  $\mathrm{Ba}^{133}$ , and  $\mathrm{Ca}^{47}\text{-}\mathrm{Sc}^{47}$ ; the isotope  $\mathrm{Fe}^{59}$  was also added to observe the ability of citrate to complex ferric ion. Each resin volume of effluent was collected and counted on a 200-channel gamma-ray scintillation spectrometer. A least-squares analysis was made of these data with the aid of the Control Data Corp. 1604-A computer to solve for the amount of activity in each solution. From this analysis, a plot was made of the sorption cycle, that is, the activity of each isotope relative to the concentration in the original feed solution,  $(\frac{C}{\mathrm{Co}})$ , as a function of resin volumes of effluent (Fig. 4). A more detailed discussion of the method of analysis is given in the Appendix.

A comparison of the sorption-cycle data (Fig. 4) with the volumedistribution-coefficient data (Fig. 3) for 20-times diluted Purex HWW indicated that (1) the strontium 50% breakthrough point of 68 resin volumes was in agreement with that predicted from equilibrium data, (2) the rare earths  $(Ce^{141})$  50% breakthrough point of 111 resin volumes was lower than the 190 resin volumes predicted, and (3) the iron was effectively complexed by citrate. The apparent 40% decrease in the distribution coefficient value of rare earths is a result of comparing data taken under dynamic conditions with data taken from a batch test in which there was a change in composition of the waste solution; that is to say, under equilibrium conditions (the beaker tests), a large fraction of the



Fig. 4. Sorption Curves. During the sorption cycle with citratetreated Purcx HWW colution, 50% breakthrough points of strontium and cerium occur at 68 and 111 resin volumes, respectively.

rare earths in solution was sorbed on the resin and thus the concentration of rare earth ions in the waste solution was reduced considerably; under flow conditions this effect was less marked. The calcium and barium 50% breakthrough points occurred at 50 and 125 resin volumes, respectively.

Bulk separation of the sorbed fission products was made by elution with ammonium  $\alpha$ -hydroxyisobutyrate according to a procedure published by Wish<sup>12</sup> (Fig. 5). This eluant, though expensive, is reportedly more capable of rapidly eluting the rare earths than ammonium lactate or ammonium citrate and does the job with no significant movement of the strontium and barium sorbed on the cation resin column.<sup>13,14</sup> The eluant also separates strontium from calcium and barium at relatively low pH values and over a small pH range. The use of the less expensive ethylenediaminetetraacetic acid (EDTA) for recovery of strontium from acidic solutions is rather limited because of its low solubility at low pH values (pH 4 to 5); appreciable column loading can lead to precipitation of alkaline earth and other cations on the resin column.<sup>15</sup> A material balance of the resin column experiment (Table 2) gave the following results:

- 1. The product rare earth stream contained more than 75% of the rare earths sorbed together with 12%, 7%, and 3% of the calcium, strontium, and barium. The calculated decontamination factor (DF) for iron was about 5, based on a 20-fold diluted Purex 1WW feed solution.
- 2. The product strontium stream contained about 55% of the strontium sorbed together with 31% of the barium and less than 1% each of the rare earths and calcium. An additional 33% of the strontium was found in the calcium product stream. The DF for iron was about 600.

The material balance of each radioactive tracer used ranged from 68% to 78%, with the exception of strontium, which was 95%.

Oxalic acid was also considered as a complexer for the trivalent cationic impurities. Added in a ratio of two moles per mole of  $Fe^{3+}$  ion, it effectively complexed iron in the waste solution. However, its use was precluded because of subsequent slow desorption of sorbed rare earths and strontium in the elution cycle.



Fig. 5. Elution Curves. During desorption with ammonium  $\alpha$ -hydroxy isobutyrate only rough separation of fission products from each other is achieved if the resin colume is fully loaded during sorption. Higher purity products could be obtained if the column were not fully loaded during sorption.

	Sorption Step	Elut	riant-Ammo	Elution sonium Q-H	Step: ydroxy Iso	butyrate
Radio- active Tracer	Total Ion Sorbed (meq)	Rare Earth (Ce <sup>3+</sup> Recovery (%)	) Calcium Recovery (%)	Strontiu Recovery (%)	n Barium Recovery (%)	Material Balance (%)
sr <sup>85</sup>	0.12	7	33	55	<.1	95 ,
Ce <sup>141</sup>	0.91	76	< 1	< 1	< 1	76
$Ca^{47}$	0.004	12	68	< 1	< 1	78
$Ba^{133}$	0.24	3	8	31	32	74
Fe <sup>59</sup>	2.2	68	< 1	< 1	< 1	68

Table 2. Material Balance of Strontium and Rare Earth Recovery from Purex 1WW Waste by Cation Exchange

3.2 Precipitation in Nitric Acid and Ion Exchange Separation

Solubility data<sup>16</sup> indicated that, in a nitrate system, the solubility of strontium ion decreased 1.5 to 2 times faster than either ferric or aluminum ion as the acid concentration increased to 40% HNO<sub>3</sub>. Additional determinations of the solubility of Fe<sup>3+</sup>, Al<sup>3+</sup>, and Sr<sup>2+</sup> in 50 to 80% HNO<sub>3</sub> solutions showed that, at 80% HNO<sub>3</sub>, almost 90% of the strontium in Purex LWW could be precipitated and that less than 20% of the Al<sup>3+</sup> and less than 1% of the Fe<sup>3+</sup> would be in the product (Fig. 6). Since the solubility of aluminum nitrate rises faster than that of strontium nitrate with increase in temperature, the solution could be heated to 70°C to decrease the aluminum impurity to less than 10%.<sup>5</sup>

Similar tests with Purex 1WW, diluted to 60 to 80% HNO<sub>3</sub> by the addition of 90% HNO<sub>3</sub>, indicated that the sulfate in the waste was interferring with the direct recovery of strontium. Iron and aluminum sulfates precipitated along with the strontium, as evidenced by (1) the greater than 90% material balance between the major cationic impurities and the sulfate in the precipitate (Table 3), and (2) the lower solubility values of strontium, aluminum, and iron than is predicted for these ions (Table 4). Therefore if we want to take advantage of known chemistry of strontium



Fig. 6. The Solubility of Strontium Nitrate in Nitric Acid is Very Significantly Lower than the Solubilities of Aluminum or Ferric Nitrates.

Nitric Acid Concen-	Ало	Precipi- tated Sulfate SOL2-				
(wt %)	Fe <sup>3+</sup>	A1 <sup>3+</sup>	Cr <sup>3+</sup>	Na <sup>+</sup>	Total	(meq)
60.9	33.6	1.38	0.109	2.09	37.2	36.2
66.0	<b>99.</b> 3	2.67	0.426	11.3	113.8	103.6
68.3	106.5	4.02	0.766	12.7	124.2	116.8
72.4	93.0	2.24	0.552	9.22	105.2	108.2
78.1	88.2	3.15	0.546	6.53	98.7	92.4

Table 3. Precipitation of Purex 1WW Waste from 60 to 80% Nitric Acid: Material Balance Between Cations and Sulfate in the Precipitate

in nitrate solutions, removal of sulfate is necessary. Such a separation, however, must be made at a concentration of nitric acid low enough to prevent the precipitation of strontium nitrate.

In tests at 45 to 60%  $\text{HNO}_3$ , excess ferric ion, in the form of freshly precipitated  $\text{Fe}_2\text{O}_3 \cdot \text{xH}_2\text{O}$ , was added to the waste solution prior to diluting with 90%  $\text{HNO}_3$ . About 85 to 90% of the sulfate precipitated, while more than 90% of the strontium and about 10% of the rare earths remained in solution at 50 to 60%  $\text{HNO}_3$  (Table 5).<sup>17</sup>

A laboratory-scale experiment was performed to test the double precipitation treatment of the waste, that is, precipitation of the sulfate ion at 55 to 60% HNO<sub>3</sub> followed by precipitation of strontium at 85% HNO<sub>3</sub>. Radiochemical and wet analyses showed that the product precipitate contained more than 85% of the strontium from the original waste solution together with the following amounts (as percent of that in the feed) of fission product contaminants: barium, more than 85%; calcium, 25%; and rare earths (Ce<sup>141</sup>), less than 10% (Table 6). In terms of solution concentration, the double precipitation step reduced the amount of cationic impurities--Fe<sup>3+</sup>, Al<sup>3+</sup>, and Cr<sup>3+</sup> -- by a factor of 80 and increased the strontium by a factor of 2.5 to 3.0. Thus, the ratio of total trivalent cationic impurities to strontium was reduced by a factor of about 210.

HNO3 Conc.	1WW-HNO <sub>3</sub> Solution Density	Solubility (g per 1000 g In 1WW-HNO	rams of cation of solution) In Pure HNO <sub>3</sub>
(wt %)	(g/ml) <sup>a</sup>	Solution	Solution
	Strontium	(Sr <sup>2+</sup> )	
60.9 66.0 68.3 72.4 78.1	1.3954 1.4081 1.4164 1.4293 1.4475	0.0736 0.0432 0.0183 0.0126 0.0069	0.200 0.0690 0.0435 0.0190 0.0060
	Iron (H	'e <sup>3+</sup> )	
59.9 60.9 66.0 68.3 69.0 72.4 78.1	 1.3954 1.4081 1.4164 1.5414 1.4293 1.4475	1.87 0.198 0.141  0.321 0.601	30   >44 
	Aluminum	(Al <sup>3+</sup> )	
60.9 66.0 68.3 72.4 78.1	1.3954 1.4081 1.4164 1.4293 1.4475	0.900 0.862 0.767 0.732 0.332	2.26 1.47 1.21 0.86 0.52

Table 4. Comparison of the Solubilities of Strontium, Ferric, and Aluminum Ions in Concentrated Nitric Acid and in 1WW Purex-Nitric Acid Solutions

a At 24 or 25°C.

<sup>b</sup> The solutions were prepared by diluting 100 ml of the synthetic 1WW with 90% nitric acid to the indicated nitric acid concentrations.

After dissolving in a minimum amount of water, the strontium product was processed further by complexing the remaining cationic impurities with citrate ion and by sorbing the fission products on a column of cation exchange resin in the ammonium form, as described in Sec 3.1. A least-squares analysis of the radioisotope activity data (Fig. 7) showed that the capacity for strontium (50% breakthrough) was 23 resin volumes of feed solution -- the equivalent of 67 resin volumes of Purex IWW processed. In terms of capacity, this represents a more than



Fig. 7. If  $Fe^{3+}$ ,  $Al^{3+}$ ,  $Cr^{3+}$ , and  $SO_{l_1}^{2-}$  Impurities are Removed by Precipitation then the Resin column Capacity for Strontium is Increased by a Factor of about 20 to 23 Volumes of Concentrated Solution which was Derived from 67 Volumes of Purex 1WW.

	A. Sulfate Distribution Between Precipitate and the Waste Solution - Wet Analysis							
		504 <sup>2-</sup> in F	Products by Wet	Analysis				
HNO <sub>3</sub> Conc. (wt %)	SO4 <sup>2-</sup> Simulated 1WW (moles/liter)	Solution (moles/liter)	Precipitate (% Total)	Material B <b>a</b> lance (wt %)				
46.6	0.987	8.31 x 10 <sup>-2</sup>	42 <sup>b</sup>	71				
50.9	0.987	$2.22 \times 10^{-2}$	85	93				
54.1	0.987	2.16 x $10^{-2}$	88	97				
54.8	0.987	1.73 x 10 <sup>-2</sup>	89	96				
59.0	0.987	$1.70 \times 10^{-2}$	92	99				

Table 5. Ferric Sulfate Precipitation from Purex 1WW Waste in which the Nitric Acid Concentrations Ranges from 45 to 60%

### B. Strontium and Iron Distribution Between the Precipitate and the Waste Solution - Radioactive Tracer Analysis

		Cation in Products by Tracer Analysis			
HNO3 Conc. (wt %)	Total Activity in Simulated 1WW (cpm)	To Total Activity in Solution (%)	tal Activit in Pre- cipitate (%)	y Material Balance (wt %)	
<u> </u>	· .	Strontium - Sr <sup>85</sup>			
46.6	$4.35 \times 10^{7}$	114	ц <sup>b</sup>	118	
50.9	$4.31 \times 10^7$	102	6	108	
54.1	$4.54 \times 10^{7}$	99	8	107	
54.8	$4.21 \times 10^7$	105	9	114	
59.0	2.90 x 10 <sup>5</sup>	100	4	104	
		Iron - Fe <sup>59</sup>			
46.6	$1.09 \times 10^{7}$	91	17 <sup>b</sup>	108	
50.9	$1.14 \times 10^{7}$	81	29	110	
54.1	$1.29 \times 10^7$	83	32	115	
54.8	1.11 x $10^{7}$	, 80	31	111	
59.0	$1.22 \times 10^7$	83	34	117	

<sup>a</sup> Each solution was prepared by (1) adding about 90 g freshly prepared Fe<sub>2</sub>O<sub>3</sub>•xH<sub>2</sub>O to 100 ml of simulated 1WW, (2) stirring for 24 hr to ensure the presence of excess Fe<sup>3+</sup>, (3) diluting with enough 90% nitric acid to the indicated HNO<sub>3</sub> concentration, and (4) stirring for at least 48 hr to approach equilibrium conditions.

Precipitate was only partially recovered.

	Purex 1WW Waste		Strontium	Concentrate <sup>a</sup>
Ion	M	g/liter	<u>M</u>	g/liter
H <sup>+</sup>	5.6		0.5	
NO3-	6.1		0.5	
so <sub>4</sub> -	1.0		0.002	
Fe <sup>3+</sup>	0.5	. '	0.007	
Al <sup>3+</sup>	0.1		0.0009	
Cr <sup>3+</sup>	0.01		0.0001	
Ni <sup>2+</sup>	0.01		< 0.0001	
Na <sup>l+</sup>	0.6		0.0026	
Sr <sup>2+</sup>		0.18	•	0.48
Ca <sup>2+</sup>		0.72	· · ·	0.46
Ba <sup>2+</sup>		0.18	· . · ·	0.67
R.E. (Ce <sup>3+</sup> )	·	1.64		1.01

Table 6. Comparison of Compositions of Purex 1WW and Strontium Concentrate After Head-End Precipitation

<sup>a</sup> The head-end precipitation treatment consisted of (1) adding excess Fe<sup>3+</sup> to 100 ml of Furex 1WW, (2) precipitating SO<sub>4</sub><sup>2-</sup> ion at 55 to 60% HNO<sub>3</sub>, (3) reducing the volume of filtrate by distillation, (4) adding 90% nitric acid to the filtrate to precipitate Sr<sup>2+</sup> at greater than 85% HNO<sub>3</sub>, (5) filtering, (6) discolving the strontium precipitate in a minimum amount of water. The volume of strontium concentrate was 33 ml, ~1/3 the volume of the original Purex 1WW waste.

twentyfold improvement for strontium sorption over that obtained by using only citrate complexing to eliminate cationic interference.

The elution data (Fig. 8) and the material balance of this resin column experiment (Table 7) showed that about 49% of the strontium sorbed was recovered in the product stream, together with 21% of the barium and less than 1% each of calcium, cerium, and iron. An additional 38% of the strontium was found in the calcium product stream. The overall iron decontamination factor was calculated to be about  $5 \times 10^5$ , based on Purex 1WW waste in its original form.



Fig. 8. If the Resin Column is Fully Loaded with Product from the Precipitation Process, then only a Rough Separation is Achieved During Desorption with Ammonium  $\alpha$ -hydroxy Isobutyrate. Higher-purity products could be obtained if the column were not fully loaded during sorption.

	Sorption <u>Step</u>	Elut	Step: ydroxy Isc	butyrate		
Radio- active Tracer	Total Ion Sorbed (meq)	Rare Eart (Ce <sup>3+</sup> ) Recovery (%)	h Calcium Recovery (%)	Strontiu Recovery (%)	n Barium Recovery (%)	Material Balance (%)
Sr <sup>85</sup>	1.68	. 10	38	49	< 1	87
Ce <sup>141</sup>	9.62	40	< 1	< 1	< 1	40
Ca <sup>47</sup>	4.15	17	30	< 1	< 1	47
Ba <sup>133</sup>	13.5	4	9	21,	25	55
Fe <sup>59</sup>	0.04	101	< 1	< 1	< 1	101

Table 7. Material Balance of Strontium Recovery from Purex 1WW Waste by the Precipitation-Ion Exchange Process: Ion Exchange Portion

#### 4. RADIATION DAMAGE TO THE CATION RESIN

As the composition of the feed solution is modified to achieve greater specific sorption of radioactive fission products on the cation resin, so also does the specific radiation power and the rate of radiation degradation of the resin increase. The extent of this degradation in a process based on either method of strontium and/or rare earth element beneficiation (Sec 2.) will be of considerable significance, as indicated below.

The cation exchange resin Dowex 50W X-8 was exposed  $^{18}$  in the hydrogen form to a 10,000-curie Co<sup>60</sup> gamma-ray source in a system of flowing water. After a dose of about 2 whr per gram of dry resin (0.75 x 10<sup>9</sup> r) the resin had lost about 40% of its strong-acid capacity; sulfonate decomposition products appeared mainly as dissolved sulfate in the flowing water stream. Swelling of the resin beads occurred, as shown by the 10 to 15% increase in specific wet-resin volume. About 20% of the resin volume decomposed and dissolved in the water. Significant breakup of the resin polymer was visible at a dose of about 1.5 whr per gram of dry resin, as evidenced by the turbidity of the column effluent. Thus, at 1 to 2 whr per gram of dry resin, mechanical difficulties in ion exchange column operation (due to bead swelling and flotation) and loss of capacity will become significant.

The calculation of the rate of capacity loss of Dowex 50W X-8 resin (Table 8) was made assuming the resin to be saturated with strontium or cerium for both the ion exchange and precipitation-ion exchange processes. Further it was assumed that radiation degradation data obtained with deionized water apply to the nitrate solutions at this report. Ratios of  $\mathrm{Sr}^{90}$  to total strontium and  $\mathrm{Ce}^{144}$  to total cerium and other pertinent nuclear data were obtained from the tables of Blomeke and Todd.<sup>3</sup> In addition, the shapes of the sorption cycle curves<sup>\*</sup> (Figs. 4 and 7) were used as a basis for assuming that both strontium and cerium were uniformly distributed throughout the column in the ion exchange process, while each of the four fission products -- Ca<sup>2+</sup>, Sr<sup>2+</sup>, Ba<sup>2+</sup>, and Ce<sup>3+</sup> -- was sorbed in a distinct band in the column in the precipitation-ion exchange process.

The calculations showed that: (1) The mass of  $\mathrm{Sr}^{90}$  ( $\tau_{1/2} = 28 \text{ y}$ ) sorbed per curie of radiation is about 25 times that of  $\mathrm{Ce}^{144}$  ( $\tau_{1/2} =$ 285 d) due to the difference in half-lives. Consequently, resin on which cerium is sorbed would be exposed to a correspondingly greater intensity of beta-particle radiation than that on which strontium is sorbed. (2) The fact that the resin (when the head-end purification is based on ion exchange) has a capacity for cerium up to tenfold greater than its capacity for strontium and the fact that  $\mathrm{Pr}^{144}$  has a higher average betaparticle energy than  $\Upsilon^{90}$  further differentiate the relative effects of cerium and strontium radiations on the resin. (3) The calculated dose rates, in the ion exchange process, due to  $\mathrm{Sr}^{90}$ - $\Upsilon^{90}$  and  $\mathrm{Ce}^{144}$ -Pr<sup>144</sup> were 0.2 x 10<sup>-3</sup> and 4.6 x 10<sup>-3</sup> watts of beta energy per gram of dry resin, respectively. Assuming a loss of 20% of capacity per watt-hour per gram

<sup>\*</sup> The sorption of a cation on an ion exchange column was followed by plotting the fraction of the feed solution cation concentration in the effluent (C/Co) vs resin volumes of feed passed through the column. When the characteristic "S"-shaped curve approached unity at 100% breakthrough and leveled off as more feed solution was passed through the column, the cation sorbed was considered uniformly distributed over the entire length of the column. However, when this curve went above unity and then returned asymptotically to unity, as in Fig. 8, then the cation was considered to be concentrated in a band, which occupied only a fraction of the column.

Table	8.	Nuclear and	. Chemica	l Data	on Sr <sup>9</sup>	$^{0}$ and Ce <sup>144</sup>	and	their
		Calculated E	ffect on	Cation	n Excha	nge Capacit	У	

A. General Nuclear Data					
······································	Radionuclide				
	Sr <sup>90</sup>	Ce <sup>144</sup>			
Mass per unit activity, meq/curie	0.156	0.0066			
Average energy of $\beta$ emmitting daughter, Mev <sup>a</sup>	0.73 (Y <sup>90</sup> )	0.97 (Pr <sup>144</sup> )			
Energy release per unit activity, (watts/curie) x 10 <sup>-3</sup>	4.32	5.74			

B. Calculations Based on Experimental Data<sup>D</sup>

	Process			
	Ion Exc	hange	Ppt'n-Io	n Exch.
	Sr <sup>90</sup>	Ce <sup>144</sup>	Sr <sup>90</sup>	Ce <sup>144</sup>
Cation resin capacity, meq/g of dry resin	0.023	0.18	3.52	1.81
Radionuclide mass, meq $\beta$ emitter, of dry resin	/g 0.007	0.059	1.17	0.602
Radionuclide energy release, ( $\beta$ -watts/g of dry resin) x 10 <sup>-2</sup>	<sup>3</sup> 0.197	4.64	32.5	46.4
Operating time to lose 10% of resin capacity, hr	2540.	108.	15.	11.

<sup>a</sup>From the data of Blomeke and Todd.

<sup>b</sup> Assume resin saturated with either  $Sr^{90}$  or  $Ce^{144}$ .

<sup>c</sup> Assume capacity loss rate of 20% per watt-hour per gram of dry resin.

of dry resin, the resin could be used in excess of 2500 hr for  $\mathrm{Sr}^{90}$ -Y<sup>90</sup> processing before losing 10% of its capacity. For Ce<sup>144</sup>-Pr<sup>144</sup> processing, this would be reduced to about 100 hr. (4) The calculated dose rates (in the precipitation-ion exchange process), due to beta emission from  $\mathrm{Sr}^{90}$ -Y<sup>90</sup> and Ce<sup>144</sup>-Pr<sup>144</sup>, were 32.5 x 10<sup>-3</sup> and 46.4 x 10<sup>-3</sup> watts per gram of dry resin, respectively. This assumes band-type sorption. The resin could be used in excess of 15 hr for  $\mathrm{Sr}^{90}$ -Y<sup>90</sup> processing or for 10 hr for Ce<sup>144</sup>-Pr<sup>144</sup> processing before losing 10% of its capacity.

#### 5. DISCUSSION OF RESULTS

Pretreatment of Purex-lWW waste with citrate ion at pH 2.5 effectively complexes the major cationic impurities -- Fe<sup>3+</sup>,  $Cr^{3+}$ , and Al<sup>3+</sup> -- and, upon subsequent cation exchange processing of a twentyfold diluted waste, increases the capacity for strontium to the equivalent of about 3 volumes of original waste per volume of resin -- a fourfold improvement over the processing of an untreated waste which has been diluted by a factor of 10. Resin capacity for rare earths (Ce<sup>3+</sup>) is increased by a factor of 3 from 1.7 to 5 volumes of original waste per volume of resin.

Pretreatment of Purex 1WW by a double precipitation -- precipitation of sulfate ion at 55 to 60% HNO<sub>3</sub> followed by precipitation of strontium at 85% HNO<sub>3</sub> -- recovers 75 to 80% of the strontium in the waste together with less than 1% each of sulfate ion and the major cationic impurities. This pretreatment concentrates the strontium by a factor of 2.5 to 3.0 and reduces by more than 200-fold the ratio of total trivalent cationic impurities to strontium. This results in a twentyfold improvement in strontium capacity, to 67 volumes of Purex 1WW processed per volume of resin, when the dissolved and citrate-treated precipitate is processed by cation exchange. Rare earth recovery by this treatment is not improved because rare earths are only partially precipitated with strontium.

Elution of the sorbed strontium with ammonium  $\alpha$ -hydroxyisobutyrate results in the following decontamination factors for ferric ion: 600 for waste pretreated with citrate ion and diluted twentyfold, and 5 x  $10^5$  for waste pretreated by a double precipitation using nitric acid. Elution of rare earths sorbed from the citrate pretreatment step results in an iron decontamination factor of only 5. However, this factor can probably be improved by eluting ferric ion with citrate to pH 2.5 to 3 before recovering any of the fission products.

Cross-contamination was observed in each of the eluted fission products --  $Ce^{141}$ ,  $Ca^{47}$ , and  $Sr^{85}$  (Figs. 5 and 8). Complete loading of the column to obtain capacity data during the sorption cycle left no reservoir of resin to provide for clean separations during the elution cycle. It was estimated that an additional 0.25 volume of fresh resin

would be ample to prevent the observed cross-contamination. Thus, purer elution products could probably be obtained by either loading to 75% of capacity during the sorption cycle or adding 0.25 volume of fresh resin to the base of a fully loaded column prior to elution.

With the precipitation-ion exchange process, both the resultant volume of liquid waste and the amount of organic chemical in the waste are smaller than in the waste derived from the direct ion exchange process. The volume is about a fourth to a third less. Citrate and  $\alpha$ -hydroxyisobutyrate are present in only about 5% of the 500 resin volumes collected from processing 67 volumes of Purex 1WW in the precipitation ion exchange process. On the other hand, in the direct ion exchange process, about 75% of the 1800 resin volumes collected from handling a like amount of Purex 1WW are about 0.05 <u>M</u> in citrate; the balance contain  $\alpha$ -hydroxyisobutyrate.

Radiation damage to the resin is up to ten times greater when processing Purex 1WW waste for rare earths  $(Ce^{144}-Pr^{144})$  than for strontium  $(Sr^{90}-Y^{90})$ . In the direct ion exchange process, the calculated dose rates are 0.2 x  $10^{-3}$  and 4.6 x  $10^{-3}$  w of beta energy per gram of dry resin for  $Sr^{90}-Y^{90}$  and  $Ce^{144}-Pr^{144}$  processing, respectively. At these intensities, it is estimated that strontium and rare earths can be processed in excess of 2500 and 100 hr, respectively, before 10% of the resin capacity is lost. In the precipitation-ion exchange process, capacity is increased a hundredfold, thereby, increasing the dose rate to  $32.5 \times 10^{-3}$  w of beta energy per gram of dry resin from  $Sr^{90}-Y^{90}$ . At this dose rate, there would be a 10% loss in resin capacity after about 15 hr of processing time. Obviously, the resin will last about 150 times longer if direct ion exchange is used rather than precipitationion exchange. Radiation damage per cycle can be minimized by the use of continuous ion exchange equipment, such as the Higgins contactor.<sup>19</sup>

#### 6. ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

The authors express their appreciation to R. E. Blanco, F. Nelson, J. T. Roberts, and E. Schonfeld for their technical assistance; to C. Feldman, W. R. Laing, G. R. Wilson, E. I. Wyatt and their co-workers

for the analytical services; and to G. J. Atta and H. C. Milliken who wrote the FORTRAN code for interpreting the radioactive tracer, scintillation spectrometry data. We also thank C. T. Thompson for help in some of the experimental work.

#### 7. APPENDIX

#### METHOD FOR ANALYZING A MIXTURE OF GAMMA-EMITTING ISOTOPES BY THE USE OF A MULTICHANNEL GAMMA-RAY SPECTROMETER

This section describes the general procedure used in order to obtain the sorption and elution curves. Since the object of the analysis was to obtain satisfactory data for flowsheet proposals, refinements in the procedure were limited to those necessary for achieving that goal. In order to follow the path of some of the fission products in the processing of Purex 1WW waste by the two procedures described in this report, the gammaray emitting isotopes Sr<sup>85</sup>, Ce<sup>141</sup>, Ba<sup>133</sup>, and Fe<sup>59</sup> were added in tracer quantity to the waste solution. The separation of strontium and rare earths, in the ion exchange step of both processes, required the collection of hundreds of effluent samples. The job of obtaining sorption and elution curves for each of the five isotopes in each of the two runs was simplified by (1) analyzing the gamma spectra of the effluent samples on a 200-channel gamma-ray spectrometer and (2) using the Control Data Corporation 1604-A computer to calculate the activity contribution of each isotope at each channel in a spectrum by a least-squares procedure and to plot the ratio of the individual isotope activities relative to their individual activities in the feed solution to the ion exchange column as a function of resin volumes of liquid passed through the column.

Data obtained by scintillation spectrometry included the gamma spectra of the background and of identical volumes of the feed solution and solutions effluent from the ion exchange column. The feed solution with the concentration of any tracer expressed as  $C_0$  was used as a standard for calculating the unknown concentrations C in the effluent samples. Each sample was placed in about the same position on a sodium iodide welltype crystal (3-in. in diameter by 3-in. high), counted, and the time of counting recorded. The multichannel analyzer was set to cover the gammaenergy range from 0 to 1.6 Mev in 160 channels, or 0.01 Mev per channel. Electronic problems produced a nonlinearity of energy versus channel number at the lower end of the energy spectrum (in the region 0 to 0.2 Mev) and also caused energy-peak shifts to occur during long-term operation of the instrument, wherein the channel-number shift was proportional to energy. The overall effect of these problems was to cause greater inaccuracies at the lower end of the energy spectrum where, characteristically, the activity of a gamma peak would span only about four to five channels, compared with the 15 to 20 channels at greater than 1 Mev.

Of the particular group of isotopes used for the experiments (Table 9) two of them had peaks of almost the same energy level: (1) The daughter product of Ca<sup>47</sup>, namely Sc<sup>47</sup>, had an energy peak of 0.157 Mev, compared with 0.145 Mev for Ce<sup>141</sup>; and (2) the energy peak of Ca<sup>47</sup> at 1.29 Mev was about the same as the 1.289 Mev peak of Fe<sup>59</sup>. The interference of Sc<sup>47</sup> was remedied by repeating measurements for Ce<sup>141</sup> after the short-lived Ca<sup>47</sup>-Sc<sup>47</sup> had decayed. Interference of Fe<sup>59</sup> in the determination of Ca<sup>47</sup> was limited to the sorption cycle only; this interference was further minimized because the Fe<sup>59</sup> activity reached a steady-state value at the beginning of the sorption cycle (iron formed a strong citrate complex and was not sorbed). Thus, when calcium breakthrough occurred, the additional activity was detected without difficulty. Wet analyses of some of the samples containing calcium ion provided an additional check on the radiochemical data.

The resolution of these gamma spectra into individual isotopic activities was done by a least-squares procedure. A correction was made for the channel shift of the energy peaks, proportional to the energy level of the peak. However, the computation assumed linearity over the entire energy spectrum covered, 0 to 1.6 Mev. The FORTRAN code written for the computer is based on the following general solution to the problem.

1. Background. M sets of background counting are obtained. The number of counts collected on channel J is designated as Y(J,M) and the time of counting, T, is represented by T(M).

Radioisotope	Half-Life	Energy of Emitted Gamma Radiation (Mev)
$     Ba^{133} \\     Ca^{47} - Sc^{47} \\     Ce^{141} \\     Fe^{59} \\     Sr^{85}   $	10.7 y 4.5 d $Ca^{47}_{47}$ 3.5 d $Sc^{47}_{7}$ 32.5 d 44.3 d 64.0 d	0.057, 0.082, 0.300, 0.357 1.29 (71%) - $ca^{47}$ 0.157 (66%) - $sc^{47}$ 0.145 (67%) 0.191, 1.098, 1.289 0.51

Table	9.	Nuclea	ar Data	on	Gam	na-Er	nitting H	Radioisotopes	Used	in
		Tracer	Quantit	ties	in	the	Reported	d Experiments		

2. Samples. A + N samples are counted of index K. A represents the standard or feed solution, which contains only one isotope; six isotopes were used, so for this problem, A = 1 to 6. N represents the number of unknowns or effluent samples counted. Y(J,K) designates the total counts collected on channel J of sample K. T(K) is the time that the same K is counted.

3. Equations. For the unknown samples (K = A + 1 to A + N corresponding to K = 6 + 1 to 6 + N in the present work), the activity count rate on channel J is the sum of the count rates of the isotopes and of the background, where the count rate of an isotope is expressed as a fraction [F(I,K)] of the count rate [X(I,J)] of the standard. These relations are then summarized for the present report as:

$$Y(K,J) = \sum_{I=1}^{6} F(I,K) X(I,J) + \frac{T(K)}{T(M)} Y(I,M) , \qquad (1)$$

where

$$X(1,J) = Y(1,J) - Y(J,1) ,$$
  

$$X(2,J) = Y(2,J) - Y(J,2) ,$$
  

$$X(3,J) = Y(3,J) - Y(J,1) ,$$
  

$$X(4,J) = Y(4,J) - Y(J,1) ,$$
  

$$X(5,J) = Y(5,J) - Y(J,1) ,$$
  

$$X(6,J) = Y(6,J) - Y(J,2) .$$
  
(2)

F(I,K) is obtained by a least-squares solution of the equation:

$$\sum_{J=1}^{160} \frac{1}{\sigma_{Y(K,J)}^{2}} \left[ Y(K,J) - \sum_{I=1}^{6} F(I,K) X(I,J) + \frac{T(K)}{T(M)} Y(J,M) \right]^{2} = \min, \quad (3)$$

where the variance of a count, namely  $\sigma^2_{\Upsilon(K,J)}$ , is equal to the count. That is,

 $\sigma_{\Upsilon(K,J)}^2 = \Upsilon(K,J)$ .

Since all the samples were not analyzed on the spectrophotometer on the same day nor counted for the same length of time, appropriate time corrections had to be made in order to make the activity data significant and comparable. These adjustments were made according to the equation:

$$R(I,K) = F(I,K) \left(\frac{T(A)}{T(K)}\right) EXP \left[-B(I) Z(K)\right], \qquad (4)$$

where

B(I) is the decay constant  $\lambda$  of isotope I,

Z(K) is the elapsed time between counting any sample, K, and its standard,

T(A) is the time of counting the standard,

T(K) is the time of counting the unknown.

Plots of R(I,K) vs resin volumes of liquid passed through the ion exchange column for each of the six isotope tracers are included as Figs. 4, 5, 7, and 8 of this report.

#### 8. REFERENCES

- 1. E. R. Irish, Description of Purex Plant Process, HW-60116 (Apr. 30, 1959).
- 2. H. H. Van Tuyl, Composition of Solids from Purex 1WW, HW-58970 (Jan. 22, 1959).
- 3. J. O. Blomeke and M. F. Todd, <u>Uranium<sup>235</sup> Fission-Product Production</u> as a Function of Thermal Neutron Flux, Irradiation Time, and Decay Time, ORNL-2127 (Aug. 19, 1957).
- 4. "Characteristics of the Yankee Atomic Power Reactor," Nucleonics, <u>19</u>, (3), 53 (1961).
- 5. E. Glueckauf, British Patent 844,376 (Aug. 10, 1956), "Improvements in or Relating to Method of Separating Strontium from Other Fission Products."
- 6. R. E. Blanco, et al., Laboratory Development of the MTR-RaLa Process for the Production of Ba<sup>140</sup>, ORNL-1148 (Aug. 19, 1952).
- R. E. Blanco, <u>Chemical Technology Division</u>, <u>Chemical Development Section</u> <u>B</u>, <u>Monthly Progress Report for December</u>, 1959, <u>ORNL-CF-50-12-74</u>, p 38.
- F. W. E. Strelow, "An Ion Exchange Selectivity Scale of Cations Based on Equilibrium Distribution Coefficients," Anal. Chem. <u>32</u>, (9), 1185 (1960).
- M. Bobtelsky and J. M. E. Goldschmidt, "The Citrate Complexes of Iron (III) and Aluminum at Low pH," Bull. Res. Counc. of Israel <u>7A</u>, 121 (1958).
- 10. S. C. Shuttleworth, "A Conductimetric Study of Chromium Citrate Complex Ions," J. Am. Leather Chem. Assoc., 46, 409 (1951).
- 11. J. Schubert in Ion Exchange, Theory and Application (F. C. Nachod, ed.), pp 177-84, Academic Press, Inc., New York, 1949.
- 12. L. Wish, "Quantitative Radiochemical Analysis by Ion Exchange Calcium, Strontium, and Barium," Anal. Chem., 33, 53 (1961).
- G. R. Choppin and R. J. Silva, "Separation of the Lanthanides by Ion Exchange with Alphu-Hydroxy Icobutyric Acid," J. Inorg. and Nucl. Chem. <u>3</u>, 153 (1956).
- 14. A. P. Baerg and R. M. Bartholemew, "Yields in U<sup>235</sup> Thermal Neutron Fission," Can. J. Chem. <u>35</u>, 980 (1957).
- G. W. Parker, I. R. Higgins, and J. T. Roberts, p 147 in <u>Ion Exchange</u> <u>Technology</u> (F. C. Nachod and J. Schubert, Eds.) Academic Press, Inc., New York, 1956.

- W. F. Linke and A. Seidell, Solubilities of Inorganic and Metal-Organic Compounds, 4th Edition, D. Van Nostrand Co., Inc., New York, 1958.
- 17. W. C. Yee and W. Davis, Jr., "Recovery of Strontium Values from Sulfate-Containing Waste Solutions," (Patent Applied For).
- 18. W. C. Yee and W. Davis, Jr., "Effects of Radiation on Cation Exchange Resin," in preparation. Summary of work to date is available in Chem. Tech. Div. Ann. Progr. Rept., ORNL-3314 and ORNL-3452.
- 19. I. R. Higgins, "Continuous Ion Exchange Equipment Adapted to Water and Dilute Waste Treatment," Ind. and Eng. Chem. 53, 635 (1961).
- 20. A. Sieverts and W. Petzold, "The System: Strontium Nitrate-Nitric Acid-Water," Z. anorg. allgem. Chem. 214, 27 (1933).
- 21. L. H. Milligan, "Solubility of Aluminum Nitrate Crystals in Solutions of Nitric Acid of Various Strengths and Various Temperatures," J. Am. Chem. Soc. 44, 567 (1922).
- 22. F. K. Cameron and W. O. Robinson, "Ferric Nitrate at 25°," J. Phys. Chem. 13, 251 (1909).
- 23. G. Malquori, "The System Ferric Nitrate-Nitric Acid-Water at 25°C," Atti accad. Lincei (6) 9, 324 (1929).
- 24. I. P. Kirillov and Z. A. Ustinova, "Solubility of Ferric Nitrate in Nitric Acid," Trudy Ivanovsk. Khim-Tekhnol. Inst. No. 5, 59 (1956).

ORNL-3585 UC-4 - Chemistry TID-4500 (29th ed.)

#### INTERNAL DISTRIBUTION

l.	Biology Library	52. Don Jacobs
2-4.	Central Research Library	53. R. H. Lafferty, Jr.
5.	Reactor Division Library	54. C. E. Larson
6-7.	ORNL - Y-12 Technical Library	55. J. T. Roberts
	Document Reference Section	56. M. J. Skinner
8-42.	Laboratory Records Department	57. J. A. Swartout
43.	Laboratory Records, ORNL R.C.	58. T. Tamura
44.	P. S. Baker	59. A. M. Weinberg
45.	R. E. Blanco	60. M. E. Whatley
46.	J. O. Blomeke	61. W. C. Yee
47.	G. E. Boyd	62. P. H. Emmett (consultant)
48.	W. E. Clark	63. J. J. Katz (consultant)
49.	D. J. Crouse	64. T. H. Pigford (consultant)
50.	F. L. Culler	65. C. E. Winters (consultant)
51.	W. Davis, Jr.	

#### EXTERNAL DISTRIBUTION

$\mathbf{er}$

٠

•

.

.